

**COMHAIRLE CATHRACH CHORCAÍ  
HALLA NA CATHRACH  
CORCAIGH**



**CORK CITY COUNCIL  
CITY HALL  
CORK**

Bíodh a fhios agat go dtionólfar cruinniú de Chomhairle Cathrach Chorcaí ar an dáta thíosluaite, ar a **5.30 A CHLOG I.N., AR MICROSOFT TEAMS** chun na gnóthaí seo a leanas a dhéanamh:-

Take notice that a Meeting of Cork City Council will be held on the undermentioned date, at the hour of **5.30 P.M. ON MICROSOFT TEAMS** for the transaction of the following business:-

**GNÁTHCHRUINIÚ – DÉ LUAIN, 8<sup>ú</sup> FEABHRA 2021**

**ORDINARY MEETING – MONDAY, 8<sup>th</sup> FEBRUARY 2021**

1. **LORD MAYOR'S ITEMS**

To consider any item the Lord Mayor may wish to raise.

2. **CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S ITEMS**

To consider any item the Chief Executive may wish to raise.

3. **MINUTES**

To consider, and if so decided to approve as correct record and sign Minutes of:-

- Ordinary Meeting of An Chomhairle held, 11<sup>th</sup> January 2021.

4. **QUESTION TIME**

Questions submitted enclosed.

5. **STATUTORY ITEMS**

5.1 **AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Assistant Chief Executive, dated the 4<sup>th</sup> February 2021 in relation to the funding arrangements for the delivery of Cork City Council's Affordable Housing Programme.

5.2 **PART 8 PLANNING PROPOSAL LEHENAGHMORE ROAD IMPROVEMENT SCHEME**

In accordance with the provisions of Section 179 (4) (a) of Planning and Development Act 2000 (as amended), An Chomhairle to consider the proposed Lehenaghmore Road Improvement Scheme and the attached report of the Director of Infrastructure Development thereon, as required under Section 179 (3) of the Planning and Development Act, 2000 (as amended) and, if so decided to adopt the following Resolution:-

“Now Council hereby RESOLVE THAT having considered the proposed development viz. the Lehenaghmore Road Improvement Scheme and the report of the Director of Services, Infrastructure Development Directorate, Cork City Council thereon, it is hereby resolved pursuant to the provisions of Section 179 (4) of the Planning and Development Act, 2000, as amended, that the Lehenaghmore Road Improvement Scheme be carried out as recommended in the said report of the Director of Services, Infrastructure Development Directorate, Cork City Council, which was put before Council on the 8<sup>th</sup> of February 2021.”

5.3 **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME: ARDFIELD DRIVE, GRANGE, DOUGLAS, CORK - GALTAN CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Interim Director of Services, Housing, dated 21<sup>st</sup> January, 2021 in relation to a loan facility for Galtan CLG in respect of the provision of one three bed unit of accommodation at 10, Ardfield Drive, Grange, Douglas, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €310,282 be granted to Galtan CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of one three bed unit at 10 Ardfield Drive, Grange, Douglas, Cork.”

5.4 **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME: SPRING VIEW TERRACE, COMMONS ROAD, CORK - PETER MCVERRY TRUST CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Interim Director of Services, Housing, dated 21<sup>st</sup> January, 2021 in relation to a loan facility for Peter McVerry Trust CLG in respect of the provision of one unit of accommodation at 9, Spring View Terrace, Commons Road, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €245,711 be granted to Peter McVerry Trust CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of one unit of accommodation at 9, Spring View Terrace, Commons Road, Cork.”

6. **BOARD OF CRAWFORD ART GALLERY**

An Chomhairle to nominate one member to the Board of Crawford Art Gallery following the resignation of Comhairleoir T. Shannon.

7. **MOTION REFERRED FROM THE ORDINARY MEETING OF AN CHOMHAIRLE HELD, 11<sup>th</sup> JANUARY 2021**

7.1 **FREE SANITARY PRODUCTS IN CORK CITY COUNCIL BUILDINGS**

‘That in view of the fact that Irish women and girls spend an average of 132 Euros every year on tampons and sanitary towels that Cork City Council would follow other Cities in providing free sanitary products in its buildings and would work to facilitate drop off points to allow people to donate sanitary products for vulnerable groups. We call on the Government to provide support to allow tampons and sanitary products to be accessible to vulnerable groups such as the homeless and asylum seekers.’

(Proposers: Cllr. J. Sheehan, Cllr. L. Bogue, Cllr. F. Kerins, Cllr. M.R. Desmond 21/021)

8. **MOTION DEFERRED FROM THE ORDINARY MEETING OF AN CHOMHAIRLE HELD, 11<sup>th</sup> JANUARY 2021**

8.1 **COMPULSORY PURCHASE OF LANDS AT BESSBORO**

‘That Cork City Council write to the appropriate department/person in government and request that the lands at the former Mother and Baby Home site at Bessboro, Mahon would be compulsory purchased and given over to Cork City Council to manage. Cork City Council could then (in line with request made by survivor groups), have the children’s burial ground made part of the Cork City cemeteries section, and the ground be marked and a wildflower garden be established.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 20/465)

9. **CORPORATE POLICY GROUP – 1<sup>st</sup> FEBRUARY 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Corporate Policy Group, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 1<sup>st</sup> February 2021.

9.1 **SECTION 141 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2001**

P. Moynihan updated the Group regarding the reporting requirements outlined in Section 141 of the Local Government Act.

**Decision of Group**

It was agreed to refer the item to An Chomhairle for information.

10. **PARTY WHIPS – 25<sup>th</sup> JANUARY 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Party Whips from its meeting held, 25<sup>th</sup> January 2021.

11. **ENVIRONMENT, WATER & AMENITY STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 18<sup>th</sup> JANUARY 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 18<sup>th</sup> January 2021.

11.1 **CORK CITY COUNCIL'S POSTERING PROTOCOL**

Members discussed postering by sports clubs and associations and considered the advices received from the Office of Legal Affairs in relation to postering.

**Decision of Committee**

Members agreed to adopt a simplified and specific application form for limited postering by sports clubs and associations. Members also agreed to accept and implement the legal advice that the protocol could be used to promote virtual meetings and that all applicants must have appropriate public liability insurance which covers the erection and removal of posters, in place before permission to erect posters can be granted. The revised protocol is to be recommended to An Chomhairle for approval.

11.2 **MOTIONS**

11.2.1 **EU GREEN NEW DEAL**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> January 2021 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘That this Council welcome Cork becoming one of the first twenty five cities to have signed the Mannheim declaration committing to an EU Green New Deal, outlining what measures can be taken through local initiatives to meet this goal.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 20/334)

**Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> January, 2021 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

11.2.2 **AIR QUALITY ALERTS**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> January 2021 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘That Cork City Council would work with Met Eireann to issue air quality alerts to the people of Cork on the lighting of non essential fires to control air pollution on cold calm nights.’

(Proposer: Cllr. C. Finn 20/378)

### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> January 2021 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### 11.2.3 **BYE LAWS FOR POSTERING IN THE CITY**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> January 2021 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘That Cork City Council formally review bye-laws regarding postering in the city, allowing exemptions for charitable and community organisations.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 20/354)

### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> January 2021 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### 11.2.4 **AVENUE OF REMEMBRANCE**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> January 2021 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘That Cork City consider installing an intertwining tree lined ‘Avenue of Remembrance’ either at the perimeter of Curraheen Science Park or Tramore Valley Park or other suitable location. Such a project would be a tribute to all the Cork people who have passed and especially since the pandemic. Their loved ones could contribute by donating towards the cost of tree (s) and maintenance of same and use this avenue for contemplative walks whilst remember their loved ones.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Forde 20/437)

### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> January 2021 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### 11.2.5 **AIR QUALITY IN THE CITY**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> January 2021 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘That Cork City Council will issue advice to city residents when air quality drops in the city, like the system in place for flood warnings in the city.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 20/439)

### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> January 2021 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

## 12. **COMMUNITY, CULTURE & PLACEMAKING STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE** **– 18<sup>th</sup> JANUARY 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Community, Culture & Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 18<sup>th</sup> January 2021.

### 12.1 **NOTICES OF MOTION**

#### 12.1.1 **ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOUR AT BLACKPOOL PLAZA**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking, dated 5<sup>th</sup> January, 2021 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘That the JPC request that the Gardaí address the anti-social behaviour and drinking that occurs on and around the Blackpool Plaza in Blackpool Village. These gatherings are creating issues for the residents and businesses in the area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boylan 20/308)

### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking, and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### 12.1.2 **HELMETS AND HIGH VISUAL JACKETS FOR CYCLISTS**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking, dated 5<sup>th</sup> January, 2021 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘Could I ask Cork City Council to encourage cyclists to use helmets and high visual jackets when cycling in the interest of health and safety. Encouragement could be used by signage at the Coca Cola Zero Bike Stations, Cork City Council social media platform etc.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 20/218)

### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking, and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### 12.1.3 **AUDIT OF SERVICES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking, dated 13<sup>th</sup> January, 2021 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘That Cork City Council will conduct an audit of its services (including physical, phone and website access) to ensure these are accessible by people with disabilities and report on measures to engage people with disabilities and their representative organisations in policy development that has an impact on disabled people’s lives, such as planning, housing, transport, social inclusion and enterprise.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 20/440)

### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking, and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### 12.1.4 **ESTABLISH A CORK SPORTS MUSEUM**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking, dated 13<sup>th</sup> January, 2021 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘That Cork City Council would put plans in place to establish a Cork Sports Museum. In this iconic year of Commemoration , when we have so eloquently commemorated our past from a political perspective and the significant events of 1920 which has forged our State to what it is today, I believe that it would be appropriate to showcase all that is good about Cork from a sporting perspective in physical form in the shape of a Sports Museum located in the City. Sport plays a hugely significant part of the social fabric of Cork and indeed Cork has a very rich history in a wide diversity of sports from a local, national and an international perspective. We should showcase and celebrate the significance and contribution that sport has made to Cork, the individual and team successes and how it has developed and evolved over the decades and beyond. I would hope that this would be a permanent fixture in our City and a home for all sporting history relating to Cork and indeed will hopefully become a viable tourist attraction into the future.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 20/463)

### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking, and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

### 12.1.5 **POLICY FOR DEALING WITH ABANDONED BICYCLES IN CORK CITY**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking, dated 13<sup>th</sup> January, 2021 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘That Cork City Council will develop and implement a policy for dealing with abandoned bicycles in Cork City and work with community groups such as Cork Cycling Campaign to assist in that endeavour.’

(Proposer: Cllr. C. Finn 21/014)

#### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking, and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

### 12.2 **SPORTS AND AMENITY FUND 2021**

Ms. D. Murphy, Senior Executive Officer outlined the following in relation to the Sports and Amenity Fund 2021:

- The budget for 2021 is €230,000
- Consultation took place over a number of months to gather information as to how the fund could fulfil some of the needs of the Community.
- The two types of amenities that are successful in areas where they already exist and are needed in other areas are Multi Use Games Areas (MUGAS) and Cluster Outdoor Calisthenic Gyms.
- The impact of Covid and theme in relation to health and wellbeing for 2021 as well as the areas with the greatest need, informed the selection of the recommended areas for the roll out of the first of the MUGAS under this scheme.
- The following are the suggested amenities and locations:-
  - South East Ward – Castle Road, Blackrock : gym on green area adjacent to the start of the Lough Mahon walkway.
  - South West Ward – Murphy’s Farm, Bishopstown/Curraheen : Gym adjacent to the existing playground.
  - North East Ward – John O’Callaghan Park, Glanmire : gym adjacent to the existing playground.
  - North West Ward – Kerry Road Park, Tower : MUGA adjacent to the existing playground.
  - South East Ward – Grange/Frankfield : MUGA

Members welcomed the proposed locations and facilities and thanked the S.E.O. for the report.

#### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking, and on the proposal of Cllr. M. Finn, seconded by Cllr. F. Dennehy it was agreed to recommend it to An Chomhairle for adoption.



13. **INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS AND TOURISM STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 18<sup>th</sup> JANUARY 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the International Relations & Tourism Strategic Policy Committee from its meeting held, 18<sup>th</sup> January 2021.

14. **SOUTH CENTRAL LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 25<sup>th</sup> JANUARY 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the South Central Local Area Committee from its meeting held, 25<sup>th</sup> January 2021.

15. **SOUTH WEST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 25<sup>th</sup> JANUARY 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the South West Local Area Committee from its meeting held, 25<sup>th</sup> January 2021.

16. **NORTH WEST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 25<sup>th</sup> JANUARY 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the North West Local Area Committee from its meeting held, 25<sup>th</sup> January 2021.

17. **NORTH EAST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 25<sup>th</sup> JANUARY 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the North East Local Area Committee from its meeting held, 25<sup>th</sup> January 2021.

18. **SOUTH EAST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 2<sup>nd</sup> FEBRUARY 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the South East Local Area Committee from its meeting held, 2<sup>nd</sup> February 2021.

19. **CLIMATE ACTION COMMITTEE – 11<sup>th</sup> JANUARY 2021**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Climate Action Committee from its meeting held, 11<sup>th</sup> January 2021.

20. **CORRESPONDENCE**

An Chomhairle to note correspondence, if any.

21. **CONFERENCE/SEMINAR SUMMARIES**

An Chomhairle to note summaries by Members of Conferences/Seminars attended, if any.

22. **CONFERENCES/SEMINARS**

An Chomhairle to approve attendance at Conferences/Seminars tabled on the night, if any.

23. **TRAINING**

An Chomhairle to approve attendance at training tabled on the night, if any.

24. **CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S MONTHLY MANAGEMENT REPORTS**

An Chomhairle to note the Chief Executive's Monthly Management reports for November and December 2020.

25. **MOTIONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES**

An Chomhairle to note the motions on Appendix 1 attached, that have been referred to the relevant Committees as determined by the Meetings Administrator, due notice of which has been given.

26. **MOTIONS**

26.1 **PLANS FOR FAMILIES SUFFERING FROM DOMESTIC VIOLENCE**

'That this Council write to Tulsa and HSE to invite their representatives to attend a meeting with elected members to discuss the plans and needs for families who are suffering from domestic violence, particularly in light of recent upsurge and their need for appropriate accommodation in light of long term effects on children, and how we can best work together to deliver those needs.'

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Forde 21/037)

26.2 **LIAISON OFFICE BETWEEN THE HEALTH SERVICE EXECUTIVE AND THE NATIONAL HEALTH SERVICE OF NORTHERN IRELAND**

'That the Council calls on the government and Minister for Health to setup a liaison office between the Health Service Executive and the National Health Service of Northern Ireland to coordinate their response to the Covid-19 outbreak.'

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Tynan 21/053)

26.3 **HOUSES OF MULTI-OCCUPANCY**

'That Cork City Council call on the Government to put in place legislation on the standards, management and maintenance specific to houses of multi-occupancy.'

(Proposers: Cllr. T. Moloney, Cllr. M. Finn, Cllr. C. Finn, Cllr. D. Boyle 21/062)

#### 26.4 **HOUSES OF MULTI-OCCUPANCY**

‘That Cork City Council calls on the Government to put in place legislation on the standards, management and maintenance specific to houses of multi-occupancy.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 21/069)

#### 26.5 **SUPPORT FOR THE GOOD FRIDAY AGREEMENT**

‘Tugann an Chomhairle faoi deara go bhfuil céad bliain caite ó rith Parlaimint na Breataine ag Westminster an tAcht um Rialú na hÉireann i Mí na Nollag 1920, an tAcht a cheadaigh Críochdheighilt na hÉireann. Cuimhnímid siar ar na héagóirí agus na deighiltí doimhne, agus ar an gcoimhlint a bhfuil an tAcht seo mar chúis leo. Athdhearbhaímid ár dtacaíocht do Chomhaontú Aoine an Chéasta agus don phróiseas polaitiúil a thagann uaidh, lena n-áirítear cúlghairm an Achta um Rialú na hÉireann. Athdhearbhaímid ár dtacaíocht d’fhéinchinntiúchán mhuintir na hÉireann mar atá sé leagtha síos in Airteagal 3.1 de Bhunreacht na hÉireann agus d’Éirinn Aontaithe a bhaint amach “trí mhodhanna síochánta amháin le toiliú thromlach na ndaoine, á chur in iúl go daonlathach, sa dá dhlíne san oileán”. Dá réir sin, éilímid ar Rialtais na hÉireann agus na Breataine go gcuirfidh siad Comhaontú Aoine an Chéasta agus a ndualgais go léir ó thaobh chearta na saoránach i bhfeidhm ina n-iomlán; éilímid ar Rialtas na Breataine go n-aontóidh siad ar dháta a shocrú don reifreann ar Aontú na hÉireann de réir fhorálacha an Chomhaontaithe; éilímid ar Rialtas na hÉireann bheith ag gníomhú ar a shon seo. Táimid réidh mar Chomhairle obair le gach comhlacht reachtúil agus leis an tsochaí i gcoitinne chun an phléanáil agus an t-ullmhú a dhéanamh don reifreann ar Aontú na hÉireann agus do thoradh dearfach sa reifreann.’

‘This Council notes the centenary of the passing by the British Parliament at Westminster of the Government of Ireland Act in December 1920, the Act which provided for the Partition of Ireland. We recall the deep injustices, divisions and conflict caused by this Act. We reiterate our support for the Good Friday Agreement and the political process arising from it, including the revoking of the Government of Ireland Act. We reaffirm our support for the self-determination of the people of Ireland as expressed in Article 3.1 of Bunreacht na hÉireann and for the bringing about of a United Ireland "by peaceful means with the consent of a majority of the people, democratically expressed, in both jurisdictions". Accordingly we call on both the Irish and British governments to fully implement the Good Friday Agreement and all their obligations with regard to the rights of citizens; we call on the British government to agree to set a date for the Irish Unity referendum as provided in the Agreement; we call on the Irish government to work for this outcome. We stand ready as a Council to work with all statutory bodies and with civic society to plan and prepare for the referendum on Irish Unity and for a positive outcome to the referendum.’

(Proposers: Cllr. M. Nugent, Cllr. H. Cremin 21/071)

26.6 **INTERNATIONAL TRADE AGREEMENTS**

‘That Cork City Council will write to the Minister for Enterprise, Trade and Employment that international trade agreements, such as CETA providing a right to multi-national corporations to sue Ireland outside of the ordinary legal and democratic systems, should be fully and properly scrutinised by the Oireachtas before ratification.’

(Proposers: Cllr. O. Moran Cllr. C. Finn, Cllr. D. Boyle, Cllr. L. Bogue 21/074)

26.7 **OLD CORK PRISON**

‘Go scríobhfaidh Comhairle Cathrach Chorcaí chuig Roinn an Chirt agus chuig an nGníomhaireacht Forbartha Talún le fiosrú má tá aon phlean do shean-phríosún Chorcaí ar Bhóthar na Ráithe Móire. Creideann an Chomhairle go mbeadh aon phlean stráitéiseach don láthair buntáisteach don phobal áitiúil.’

‘That Cork City Council write to the Department of Justice and the Land Development Agency to query if there is a plan for the old Cork Prison on Rathmore Rd. Council believes any strategic plan for the site should be of benefit to the wider local community.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 21/084)

**ALMA MURNANE**  
**MEETINGS ADMINISTRATOR**

Chuig gach ball de Chomhairle Cathrach Chorcaí.

4<sup>ú</sup> Feabhra 2021

# **APPENDIX 1**

## **MOTIONS**

An Chomhairle to note the referral to the relevant Committee of the following motions, due notice of which has been given:-

1. **TRAFFIC CALMING RAMPS AT COLMCILLE ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council paint the traffic calming ramps, resurface the road at Colmcille Road including the section into Templeacre Avenue which has been requested previously.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 20/418)

**North West Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

2. **CHICANE AT KILMORE ROAD, KNOCKNAHEENY**

‘That Cork City Council repair and paint the chicane at Kilmore Road, Knocknaheeny.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 20/419)

**North West Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

3. **REDUCE SPEED LIMIT ON BLARNEY ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council reduce the speed limit to 30km on Blarney Road and old Blarney Road from the junction of Milestream past Clogheen Church and onto old Blarney Road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 20/420)

**North West Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

4. **PUBLIC LIGHTING AT BARRS LANE/DEANROCK VILLAS, TOGHER**

‘That City Council would check out the reasons why the public lighting/lamps are not working in the Harleywood Complex in the Barrs Lane/Deanrock Villas, Togher seeing that we have a lot of HAP/RAS tenants there.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 20/428)

**South West Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

5. **TREE BETWEEN CARRIGROHANE ROAD AND MODEL FARM ROAD**

‘That City Council would examine the condition of a huge tree that's leaning presently as this will bring down electric wires onto the walkway between Carrigrohane Road and Model Farm Road if it is blown down in heavy winds. The exact location is approx. 200 metres west of the pedestrian bridge that crosses the stream and its located on the island north of this walkway.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 20/449)

**South West Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

6. **FUNDING FOR CHRISTMAS LIGHTS**

‘That City Council would, for the year of 2021 and beyond consider allocating some grants/funding for community groups/businesses in our towns and suburbs who would be interested in erecting Christmas lights to decorate and help bring some Christmas spirit into their areas and communities.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 20/455)

**Community, Culture & Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee – 15/03/21**

7. **AREA BASED PLAN FOR FAIR HILL**

‘That Cork City Council prioritise the recommendations contained in the Area Base Plan - Fair Hill 2020 and refer to the NW LAC for further actions.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 20/468)

**North West Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

8. **GREEN RECREATIONAL SPACES IN THE BISHOPSTOWN AND WILTON AREA**

‘That Cork City Council will identify and develop green recreational spaces in the Bishopstown and Wilton area such as the green space on the junction of Melbourn Road and Curraheen Road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. C. Finn 21/015)

**South West Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

9. **ILLEGAL DUMPTING IN THE MAGAZINE ROAD AREA**

‘That Cork City Council will identify and deal with illegal dumping in the Magazine Road area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. C. Finn 21/016)

**South West Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

10. **MONITOR WORKS AT MAGLIN, BALLINCOLLIG**

‘Now that An Bord Pleanála has granted permission for the development at Maglin in Ballincollig, that City Council would monitor these works in making sure that no damage is done to the historic castle while these works are in progress.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 21/032)

**South West Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

11. **REGENERATION OF MOUNT FARREN AND FARRANCLEARY, BLACKPOOL**

‘The Cork City Councillors seek government funding for the regeneration of Mount Farren and Farrancleary Blackpool.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 21/033)

**North East Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

12. **ROAD MARKINGS AT DOUGLAS VILLAGE, DOUGLAS COURT AND FINGERPOST ROUNDABOUT**

‘Can Council advise when will all the road markings at traffic light junctions and roundabouts and pedestrian crossings in and adjacent to Douglas Village, Douglas Court and Fingerpost Roundabout be refreshed as currently they are very indistinct and therefore dangerous to pedestrian and road users particularly with poor public lighting at night.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Forde 21/035)

**South East Local Area Committee – 23/02/21**

13. **STREAM ALL COMMITTEE MEETINGS**

‘That all Council meetings, including area committee, SPC, Rapid, Arts Committee, Sports Committee etc. be streamed live the same as council meetings, in the interest of openness and transparency and works of City Council.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 21/036)

**Corporate Policy Group – 01/03/21**

14. **ROADS AND FOOTPATHS AT TIFFANY DOWNS, BISHOPSTOWN**

‘That Cork City Council would carry out a full inspection of Tiffany Downs, Bishopstown as early as possible in 2021. In the assessment review the road and footpaths and put in line the funding to carry out proper repairs within the estate for the long term not just short term repairs that last no time at all. A timeline also need to be put on these repairs as this request has been made many times in the past number of years.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 21/038)

**South West Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

15. **CONTROLLED CROSSING AT THE JUNCTION OF BEAUMONT AVENUE AND BARRINGTONS AVENUE**

‘That Cork City Council would consider the installation of a controlled crossing at the junction of Beaumont Avenue and Barringtons Avenue on the Blackrock Road. This junction is used by a significant amount of pedestrians and cyclists who wish to access the Atlantic pond and the marina. Also, if something could be done at the other end of Beaumont Ave. to widen the pedestrian access.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Cahill 21/039)

**South East Local Area Committee – 23/02/21**

16. **TAKE SMALL PARK IN BLACKPOOL RETAIL PARK INTO PUBLIC OWNERSHIP**

‘That Cork City Council seek to take the small park in the Blackpool Retail Park into public ownership as per the original intention as outlined in the planning documentation. Blackpool will see a large increase in population over the next five years and with zero public green spaces in easy walking distance, the ongoing situation of the park being closed during public holidays, weekends and pandemic closures is not sustainable.’

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Ryan 21/040)

**North West Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**



17. **PLAN FOR NORTHSIDE CYCLING INFRASTRUCTURE**

‘That Cork City Council, separate to the Mobility Plan, drafts a plan for northside cycling infrastructure with an orientation to link the City Center with Blackpool, the North Ring Road and Ballyvolane. All areas will see a significant population increase over the next five years with approved social housing plans underway and alternatives to driving has never been more urgent.’

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Ryan 21/041)

**Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 15/02/21**

18. **PUBLIC LIGHTING IN MURMONT, MONTENOTTE**

‘That Cork City Council would, in the interest of public safety, put in place adequate public lighting around the recently installed public salkway around the eastern end of the Tank Field in Murmont, Montenotte.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 21/042)

**North East Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

19. **LOCAL AREA PLAN FOR THE LOWER MAYFIELD AREA**

‘That Cork City Council would commence the process of drawing up a Local Area Plan for the lower Mayfield area which could subsequently feed into the forthcoming City Development Plan 2022-2028. The areas in question would stretch from Mayfield Community School, down through the full Roseville Estate to Boyne Crescent Estate and also incorporating the Glen River Park. The regeneration of the Roseville Estate, which I have previously requested through a motion, and the Glen River Park are well overdue and would contribute very positively to the Northside of the City, its environs and the ever expanding local communities. I would request that this Local Area Plan should be implemented as soon as possible and subsequently fed into the 2022-2028 City Development Plan.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 21/043)

**North East Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

20. **ZEBRA CROSSING AND AUDIO ASSISTED TRAFFIC LIGHTS IN THE GLANMIRE AREA**

‘That Cork City Council would implement the following in the interest of public safety:-

- Put in place a zebra crossing at a suitable location in Sallybrook, Glanmire to enable pedestrians to cross the road safely on the stretch of road between Springhill Church and Glanmire GAA club entrance.
- That Cork City Council would add audio assistance to the traffic lights at the junction at Riverstown Cross.

This is a very busy stretch of road and getting busier given the ever increasing population in the Glanmire and surrounding areas. The implementation of the above safety measures would greatly enhance the area from a public safety perspective and I would ask that engineers would examine the feasibility of putting these measures in place as soon as possible.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 21/044)

**North East Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

21. **REPLACE SIGNS IN MAYFIELD**

‘That Cork City Council would engage with the NTA and request the replacement of the two “Welcome to Mayfield” signs on the Northern Ring Road at the Mayfield Garda station junction and the junction at Ballyvolane. The stone signs there at the moment are delapidated and somewhat unsightly to say the least. Can these be replaced by bright steel weatherproof standard road signs’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 21/045)

**North East Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

22. **SCHOOL TRAFFIC WARDEN FOR SOUTH DOUGLAS ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council engage the services of a School Traffic Warden for the South Douglas Road so as to ensure that children from Gaelscoil na Dúglaise and Douglas Community School are able to safely cross the road on their way to and from school.’

(Proposer: Cllr S. O’Callaghan 21/047)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

23. **SLOW DOWN MARKINGS ON THE AIRPORT ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council put down a number of “Slow” and/or “Slow Down” road markings on the part of Airport Road approaching the junction at Frankfield Road/Grange Road. The road referred to is the road between the Bull McCabes Bar and Curragh Woods on the Frankfield Road/Grange Road where Little Paradise Creche is located.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 21/048)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

24. **EXTEND OPENING HOURS OF TRAMORE VALLEY PARK**

‘That Cork City Council extend the February opening hours of Tramore Valley Park from 5 pm to 7 pm so as to allow people in the locality to have extra time to exercise, walk their dogs etc.

This would be a very positive initiative by Cork City Council at a time when people are not permitted to travel more than 5 km from their homes.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 21/049)

#### **South Central Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

#### 25. **BALLYPHEHANE ROAD IMPROVEMENTS**

‘I ask my colleagues to support my motion calling on the Roads & Transport Directorate of Cork City Council to bring forward plans and to seek funding to address the current disrepair of the following roads in Ballyphehane:-

- (1) Pearse Road, from it's junction with Tory Top Road Lower to the Lough Road.
- (2) Connolly Road, from it's junction with Tory Top Road Upper to Pouladuff Road.

The roadways and pedestrian pathways on these two sections of road have over the past number of years come into so much disrepair that they are dangerous to pedestrians and have become unsightly and are in need of a major upgrade such as or similar to the recent road improvement scheme to Skehard Road, Blackrock. I would further ask that plans should include the removal of the grass margins so as to provide inset parking for residents. With inset parking being provided it would allow ample space for cyclists. With this in mind I would further ask that 4 new Cycle lanes be provided on the following roadways:-

- (1) Pearse Road, on both sides of the roadway (East and West) from Tory Top Road lower to Lough Road.
- (2) Connolly Road, on both sides of the roadway (inbound and outbound) from Tory Top Road upper to Pouladuff Road.

Tree management should also form part of the plan as it is very obvious that some trees on these roads are overgrown and causing immense damage to footpaths and boundary walls. Dangerous and problematic trees should be removed where necessary and replaced with a more non invasive species thereby eliminating any future damage to the pathways.’

(Proposer: Cllr. P. Dineen 21/050)

#### **South Central Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

#### 26. **LIGHTS ON PATHWAY TO GUS HEALY SWIMMING POOL**

‘That a report is furnished outlining when the 5 lights on pathway from Douglas Gus Healy Swimming Pool to the Children’s Playground will be commissioned.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Forde 21/051)

#### **South East Local Area Committee – 23/02/21**

27. **TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES AT ARDBHAILE, MAYFIELD**

‘I call on the Council to urgently install traffic calming measures, such as speed ramps, on the roadway adjacent to St. Killian's School at Ardbhaile, Mayfield, and that the 30 km speed limit be imposed in the area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Tynan 21/054)

**North East Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

28. **FENCED OFF DOG PARK IN TORY TOP PARK**

‘That Cork City Council carry out an assessment to examine whether it would be feasible to establish a small, fenced off dog park in Tory Top Park where dog owners could bring their dogs to exercise, off-lead, in a safe and controlled environment.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 21/055)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

29. **AIR QUALITY PUBLIC WARNINGS**

‘That Cork City Council introduce air quality public warnings based on forecasting information.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 21/056)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 15/03/21**

30. **OPPORTUNITIES FOR URBAN FARMING AND CITY FOOD PRODUCTION**

‘That Cork City Council will report on opportunities for urban farming and city food production, including the benefits for community, biodiversity and employment, that can be included in the Cork City Development Plan 2022–28.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 21/064)

**Strategic, Economic Development, Enterprise & Planning Strategic Policy Committee – 15/02/21**

31. **SIGNS AT THE GLEN RIVER PARK**

‘That Cork City Council will install signs at the Glen River Park informing park users about the nature and biodiversity of the area and providing practical advice for park users such as keeping dogs on a lead to protect wildlife.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 21/065)

**North East Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

32. **LOCATIONS TO INSTALL OWL BOXES**

‘That Cork City Council will identify locations to install owl boxes within the city boundary.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 21/066)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 15/03/21**

33. **REPAIR FOOTPATH AT BALLINTEMPLE**

‘That the footpath between Temple Inn and Venue public houses, Ballintemple be repaired.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 21/067)

**South East Local Area Committee – 23/02/21**

34. **REDUCE SPEED LIMIT ON CHURCH ROAD**

‘That the request to ward councillors by the Parent Association of St Michael’s NS, Blackrock on Church Road be looked at and implemented with regard to speed limit reduction to 30 kph, adequate school awareness signage, speed limit posting on both approaches on Church Road, road markings, and bollards at the front of the school.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 21/068)

**South East Local Area Committee – 23/02/21**

35. **RESURFACE CASTLE GARDENS, BLARNEY**

‘That Cork City Council resurface Castle Gardens, Blarney.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 21/070)

**North West Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

36. **ZONING OF BESSBORO SITE**

‘Tar éis chinneadh Chomhairle Cathrach Chorcaí pleanáil a dhiúltú d’fhorbairt tithíochta ag láthair Bessboro (Uimh. Thag: 20/39705), cinnteoidh an Chomhairle, tar éis aon achomhairc, go zónálfar an limistéar d’fheidhmeanna neamh-chónaitheacha, feidhmeanna fóilíochta nó taitneamhachta, b’fhéidir.’

‘Following the decision by Cork City Council to refuse planning for a housing development at a site Bessboro (Ref. No: 20/39705) the Council subsequent to any appeals will move to ensure the area is zoned for non-residential, perhaps for recreational and amenity purposes.’

(Proposers: Cllr. M. Nugent, Cllr. H. Cremin 21/072)

**Strategic, Economic Development, Enterprise & Planning Strategic Policy Committee – 15/02/21**

37. **SURVEY FOOTPATHS IN KNOCKNAHEENY AND HOLLYHILL**

‘Go ndéanfaidh Cathair Chorcaí suirbhé ar chosáin i gceantair Chnoc na hAoine & Chnoc an Chuilinn agus go ndéanfar obair leasúcháin agus athnuachana freisin, áit a bhfuil sé ag teastáil.’

‘That Cork City will survey footpaths in the Knocknaheeny and Hollyhill areas and carry out remedial or renewal work where required.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Nugent 21/073)

**North West Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

38. **REPLACE FENCE BETWEEN SPRING LANE AND GLEN FIELDS**

‘That Cork City Council replace the fence between the Spring Lane halting site, the Glen Fields Park and Glen Fields area, in the interests of health and safety to animals who have been caught between the fence and have sustained serious injuries and also in the interests of protecting the health and safety of all residence on both sides of the fence.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 21/075)

**North East Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

39. **TRAFFIC CALMING ON SOUTH DOUGLAS ROAD**

‘That traffic calming and pedestrian friendly improvements be provided at the junction of Rathmore Lawn and South Douglas Rd.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 21/076)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

40. **PHYSICAL SECURING OF VERNON MOUNT HOUSE**

‘That resources be secured for the proper physical securing of Vernon Mount House.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 21/077)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

41. **CORK HEALTHY CITIES 10 YEAR STRATEGY**

‘That Cork City Council resolves to support the Cork Healthy Cities 10 year strategy to make Cork a child-friendly city and that the Council investigate including the recommendations of this strategy in the council's development plan as well as developing a City Council strategy towards complying with UNICEF's Child Friendly Cities Initiative.’

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 21/078)

**Corporate Policy Group – 01/03/21**

42. **LOW COST SCHOOL STREET INTERVENTIONS**

‘That Cork City Council using data gathered from schools for covid19 traffic management create a list of schools that are suitable for low cost "school street" interventions and that this list is provided to all LACs in order that state funding may be applied for and that green schools and cork healthy cities may be consulted with for piloting same.’

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 21/079)

**Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 15/02/21**

43. **CAR PARKING TASK FORCE**

‘That Cork City Council investigate creating a car parking task force modelled on the anti dog fouling committee given the level of safety issues and damage to infrastructure this pattern of behaviour is creating on a systemic level.’

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 21/080)

**Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 15/02/21**

44. **IRISH WATER UPDATES**

‘That Cork City Council write to Irish Water and ask them if they can update residents, communities, Cork City Council and Public Representatives when

- Planned works are taking place on a regular basis
- Unplanned water pipe breaks occur
- Update their online information to reflect the actual situation in a community outside of 9-5

A lot of issues have arisen in the Cork City North East and in other ward where the communication of planned works has been poor, the updates for unplanned works has also been

poor and the information on the website has not reflected what happens in the community, this is worsened by the fact that the Local Representative number is Mon - Fri 9am - 5pm. An emergency line needs to be provided to deal with out of hour matters when breaks occur.'

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 21/081)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 15/03/21**

45. **STRATEGY FOR PLAYGROUNDS**

'That Cork City Council develops a development and maintenance strategy for our playgrounds. This strategy must

- Maintain existing playgrounds across all wards
- Plan for future playgrounds and communicate with community groups on a regular basis
- Transition of our existing playgrounds to ones that can be used by all abilities and senses
- New Plans for how these will be funded, from central and regional funding sources with European sources engaged also.'

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 21/082)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 15/03/21**

46. **IMPROVEMENTS AT DUNKETTLE ROAD**

'That Cork City Council begin providing new foot paths, traffic calming measures and improved public lighting on the 1 kilometre stretch of the "back" Dunkettle Road, between the Gael Scoil and the new housing development at Ballinglanna, Glanmire.'

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 21/083)

**North East Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**

47. **ILLEGAL DUMPING ON LEE ROAD**

'That Cork City Council in view of the increase in illegal dumping on the Lee Road, would erect signage to deter potential dumping on the scenic Lee Road.'

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Sheehan 21/085)

**North West Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**



48. **RESURFACE CASTLE GARDENS ESTATE**

‘That Cork City Council resurface the road at Castle Gardens Estate, Station Road, Blarney.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Sheehan 21/086)

**North West Local Area Committee – 22/02/21**